
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Bankston

AGENDA March 02, 2016

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Bankston

Presentation Myeloma Awareness Presentation

Presentation Commissioner Sabrena Smedley honoring Travis Close for winning the Greater Chattanooga
Association of Realtors 2015 Realtor of the Year Award. Agenda Session Only - February 24,
2016

Minutes Recessed Meeting - February 10, 2016

Minutes Agenda Session - February 10, 2016

Minutes Regular Meeting - February 17, 2016

Report Criminal Court Clerk's Report - December 2015 and January 2016

Res. No. 316-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, oath of Deputy Sheriff, and the oaths of Office of Commissioners
of North West Utility District.

Res. No. 316-2 A Resolution approving the expenditure of one thousand three hundred three dollars ($1,303.00)
from discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Nine) to assist with the purchase of lab
equipment for Brown Middle School.

Res. No. 316-3 A Resolution approving the expenditure of up to one thousand nine hundred thirty eight dollars
($1,938.00) from discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Five) to purchase a security
system for Woodmore Elementary School.

Res. No. 316-4 A Resolution making an appropriation to Gamma Pi Boule Foundation in the amount of two
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted
to District Four.

Res. No. 316-5 A Resolution in support of Chattanooga 2.0, a community-wide effort for academic excellence in
Hamilton County.

Res. No. 316-6 A Resolution authorizing the appropriation of funds from the Register’s Office DP Fee Account in
the amount of $24,208.05 for necessary office upgrades and increasing the General Fund
budget for capital outlay for the Hamilton County Register’s Office by $12,550.00 and authorizing
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 316-7 A Resolution accepting the bid of Draeger Safety, Inc. for a portable exterior live fire trainer and
tank prop amounting to $28,785.00 for Emergency Services and authorizing the County Mayor
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 316-8 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to increase the contract with TWH Architects, Inc.
for the design of the New East Brainerd Elementary School, for an amount not to exceed
$141,035.88 of previously budgeted funds.

Res. No. 316-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of American Group Photography dba Custom Photo Images for
one (1) Roundshot Metrics camera and equipment amounting to $17,995.00 for Sheriff's Office
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 316-10 A Resolution authorizing the Sheriff’s Office to purchase, from the Tennessee Statewide
Contract, new and unused vehicles to be utilized as unmarked or undercover vehicles; the
number of such vehicles to be purchased to be determined by the funds appropriated annually,
not to exceed $120,000.00 for FY 2016 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 316-11 A Resolution accepting the bids of Acme Supply Company, LTD, Bob Barker Company, Inc.,
ICS Jail Supplies, Inc., Carolina Textiles, Charm-Tex, Cornerstone Detention Products, Inc.,
O.D. Targin & Brothers, LLC, and Victory Supply, Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning
March 20, 2016, through March 19, 2017, for clothing and miscellaneous items for the Sheriff’s
Office and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 316-12 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a continuation contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of
$278,600.00 to provide Childhood Immunization Services in Hamilton County, for the period of
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016.

Res. No. 316-13 A Resolution accepting the bids of Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, and Sherman Dixie
Concrete Industries, Inc. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, through
September 6, 2016, for concrete and metal culvert for the Highway Department and to authorize
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 316-14 A Resolution accepting the bid of TNT Concrete, LLC for six (6) months contract pricing,
beginning March 7, 2016 through September 6, 2016, for ready mix concrete for the Highway
Department, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.

Res. No. 316-15 A Resolution accepting the bids of Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Materials Company, and
Dunlap Stone, Inc. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, through
September 6, 2016, for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department, and authorizing
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 316-16 A Resolution accepting the bids of Talley Construction Company, Inc. dba Southeastern
Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials Company, Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc., Dunlap Stone, Inc. and
Hiwassee Paving, LLC. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, through
September 6, 2016, for asphalt road materials and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 10, 2016 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 10th day of February, 2016, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. 

Commissioner Mackey arrived moments after the roll was called. Total present – 9.  

Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Graham introduced the Reverend Brandon Gilvin, First Christian 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to the flag. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

2 
 

PRESENTATION – CHARLES H. COOLIDGE MEDAL OF HONOR HERITAGE 

CENTER 

 

 Major General William “Bill” Raines, Jr., US Army (Retired) and Chairman of the 

Board of Trustees of the Medal of Honor Heritage Center, spoke about the two-story, 

6,800 square foot domed museum the group plans to build at Coolidge Park.  

 

 A Medal of Honor Museum has been in existence here since 1987 and is 

currently housed in Northgate Mall. The Coolidge Park Heritage Center is to be named 

in honor of Medal of Honor recipient Charles H. Coolidge. It was reported that the 

Center will also be a reflection of the first awards given to six of Andrews Raiders for 

action here in April 1862.  Mr. Coolidge is now 94 years old and resides in Signal 

Mountain, Tennessee. 

 

Mr. Raines explained the design will include six columns that represent the six 

character traits that represent the Medal of Honor. These traits will be incorporated in 

the National Medal of Honor Foundations Character Development program aimed at 

middle school children. It was noted that Chattanooga has a rich history regarding the 

Medal of Honor, and the museum will showcase the heroism associated with the award. 

The museum will become a tourist destination for visitors to Hamilton County along with 

military reunions, and will serve as an education center and field trip destination for area 

schools. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

3 
 

 Mr. Raines introduced local architect Pat Neuhoff who has led the design and 

development of the preliminary facility. Mr. Neuhoff presented a slide presentation to the 

Commission, which highlighted the location, preliminary design of the building, and the 

surrounding plaza. It was noted that the plaza will include an amphitheater that will be 

available for community use. A copy of the presentation was distributed to the Clerk’s 

office. 

 

 In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Mr. Raines explained that the 

Medal of Honor Museum will serve as a resource for tourists interested in exploring 

other sites, such as Chattanooga’s National Cemetery.  

  

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Mr. Raines reported that the 

group is seeking from Chattanooga and Hamilton County governments a 99-year 

ground lease for approximately one acre of Coolidge Park located in the Northeast 

corner adjacent to Tremont Street at $1.00 per year. He added there will be a private 

fundraising campaign to raise funds to build the center, and an endowment fund is 

planned so it will be self-sustaining.  

 

 Chairman Bankston thanked Mr. Raines and Mr. Neuhoff for their presentation.   

  

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

4 
 

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

     Respectfully submitted: 

 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

Approved: 

 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 10, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 10th day of February, 2016, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• A Three Star Compliance report would be submitted and made a matter of 
record.  

• Resolution No. 216-16 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolution Nos. 216-17A and 216-17B were assigned to the Zoning Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

• Resolution Nos. 216-35 through 216-41 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

• Resolution Nos. 216-18 through 216-34 were heard by a Committee of the 
Whole. 

 
  
 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would be meeting in the Conference Room immediately following the 

Agenda Session.    

 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 216-18 through 216-34 would 

now be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 3 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-18 
 

This Resolution confirms the appointment of Craig Peavy and the reappointment 

of Randy Metcalf and Ernest Noll, Jr. to the Hamilton County Contractors Board of 

Appeals and Adjustments for terms ending January 4, 2020.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-19 

 

This Resolution reappoints Ann Badgley to the Hamilton County Health and 

Safety Hearing Board for a four-year term beginning February 15, 2016 and ending 

February 15, 2020.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

  

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-20 

  

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which confirms the appointment of 

Donald Lee Norris as Administrator of General Services. It was noted that Mr. Norris will 

be filling the vacancy created by Don Allen’s retirement. Mayor Coppinger added that 

Mr. Norris will be a great asset to County government.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 4 

 Commissioner Graham noted that that has worked with Mr. Norris in the past. He 

recalled that anytime he called him involving an issue in the Chattanooga part of his 

district that Mr. Norris was very accommodating. He stated that he would be supporting 

this Resolution.   

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-21 

  

Sheriff Jim Hammond spoke regarding the Bridge Retirement Plan (BRP) 

Resolution. He pointed out that Commission action would adopt the plan with a 

mandatory retirement age for certain deputies at age 55, with 25 years creditable 

service pursuant to TCA 8-36-201(A) (2). Sheriff Hammond explained that the 

Resolution was the result of years of discussion and will allow officers to retire with 

dignity.  

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Sheriff Hammond explained that 

current legislation only allows certified police officers to participate in the BRP. He 

stated that if legislation is introduced in the General Assembly to include Park Rangers, 

Court Officers and Jailers, he would support it. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 5 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Captain Bill Johnson reported 

the results of a poll taken in the Sheriff’s Department. It was noted that out of 167 

officers, 157 supported the Bridge Retirement Plan.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks thanked Sheriff Hammond and each officer present 

today, as well as those who have attended past meetings to discuss the Bridge 

Retirement Plan.  

 

In response to Commissioner Field’s question, Administrator of Finance Al Kiser 

explained the initial cost to the County would be about $350,000. He added the 

projected future cost would be dependent on Tennessee Consolidated Retirement 

System (TCRS) evaluations done every other year, but it would not be less than 

$350,000.  Funds to support the BRP will come out the County’s General Fund.  

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Captain Johnson noted that 

between ten and twelve currently retired officers would fall under this plan.  

 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 6 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-22 

 

Commissioner Fields spoke regarding this item, which approves the expenditure 

of $20,000 from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 2, to assist the 

Town of Signal Mountain with community ball field improvements.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-23 

  

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $1,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 9, to Partnership for 

Families, Children, and Adults, Inc. It was noted that the funds will assist the non-profit 

organization in supporting the Rape Crisis Center.   

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 7 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-24 
 

 Commissioner Smedley spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $1,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 7, to Partnership for 

Families, Children, and Adults, Inc. It was noted that the funds will assist the non-profit 

organization in supporting the Rape Crisis Center.  Commissioner Smedley added that 

she visited the Rape Crisis Center, and encouraged members of the Commission to 

support this item and the work they do.   

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-25 

 

 Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding this Resolution, which appropriates 

$2,500.00 from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 8, to Want To 

Foundation, Inc. It was noted that the funds will assist the non-profit organization with 

their Destiny Program, which encourages teens to find focus.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd introduced Want To Foundation Inc. Founder, Gary 

Highfield, who gave a presentation on the work the organization promotes. Mr. Highfield 

is the author of the book “When ‘Want TO’ becomes ‘Have TO!’” which tells the story of 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 8 

overcoming adversity, environmental disadvantages, limited education, and a 

challenging family life  to achieve a successful career and desired lifestyle.  

 

  Mr. Highfield explained that the Want To Foundation seeks to mentor young 

students and encourage them to stay in school and focus on their future. It was noted 

that the organization currently mentors students in three local schools: East Ridge High 

School, Ivy Academy, and Ridgeland High School. Mr. Highfield explained that he 

started the program two and a half years ago with 14 students, and through self-funding 

he has grown the program to 1,925 students with 50 mentors, 3 of which were 

recognized in the audience at today’s meeting. He distributed a survey of career goals 

to members of the Commission (attached) taken by 9th grade students at Tyner High 

School in 2014. He noted that helping students focus on their future by recognizing their 

goals is an important step in achievement.  

 

 Commissioner Beck praised the work that Mr. Highfield is doing in schools 

throughout Hamilton County.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Fairbank’s question, Mr. Highfield spoke at length 

about the process it takes to have his program accepted into schools. It was noted that 

he hopes to eventually be included in all Hamilton County schools. Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 9 

Fairbanks thanked Mr. Highfield and the local business owners that have invested in the 

Want To Foundation program.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd spoke about the importance of elected officials representing 

those whose voices may not be heard.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes added that he has known Mr. Highfield for many years, 

and thanked him for his dedication to students as well as his diligent work in promoting 

his ideas.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-26 

  

 Commissioner Beck spoke regarding this Resolution, which approves the 

expenditure of up to $7,200.00 from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District 5, to 

purchase an audio and speaker system for the Brainerd High School gymnasium.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 10 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-27 
 

 Commissioner Beck spoke regarding this Resolution, which appropriates 

$2,500.00 in general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 5, to A Better 

Tomorrow to assist with their Project Evolution program. Commissioner Beck added that 

per the request of the Community Action Alliance Committee (a committee organized by 

Commissioner Beck to prioritize community development projects), there would be a 

$2,500 ceiling on his discretionary fund giving, with the exception of special projects.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-28 

 

 Commissioner Beck spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $26,000 from 

general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 5, to Mary Walker Historical 

and Educational Foundation, Inc. It was noted that $20,000 of those funds will assist the 

non-profit with various community development projects, and the other $6,000.00 will 

assist with their Black History Art Exhibit currently on display at Bessie Smith Cultural 

Center.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 11 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-29 

 

 Todd Leamon, Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer spoke 

regarding this item, which accepts the bid of Chattanooga Tractor & Equipment, Inc. for 

a boom mower tractor amounting to $95,667.00 for the Highway Department. It was 

noted that Chattanooga Tractor & Equipment was the lowest bid and met all the 

specifications.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-30 

 

 Development Director Dan Saieed spoke regarding this item, which authorizes 

the County Mayor to submit a FastTrack Economic Development (ED) Fund grant 

application to the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development on 

behalf of Yanfeng USA Automotive Trim Systems, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 

$1.25 million to provide various building and equipment improvements at the company’s 

new Hamilton County Location on Bonnyshire Drive.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Mr. Saieed reported there 

would be no expense to Hamilton County with this type of grant.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 12 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question about employee training, Mr. 

Saieed noted that this grant is mainly for components and that a separate grant is 

available for employee training directly though the state.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-31 

 

 This Resolution authorizes the County Mayor to submit a FastTrack Economic 

Development (ED) Fund grant application to the Tennessee Department of Economic 

and Community Development on behalf of West Star Aviation, Inc. in an amount not to 

exceed $200,000 to provide various improvements at the company’s new hanger facility 

at the Chattanooga Metropolitan Airport. Mr. Saieed reported there would be no 

expense to Hamilton County with this type of grant.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-32 

 

 This Resolution authorizes the County Mayor to negotiate, enter into, and 

execute a lease agreement between Hamilton County, City of Chattanooga, and the 

Charles H. Coolidge Medal of Honor Heritage Center for a portion of County and City 

owned property in Coolidge Park. It will also authorize locating a Medal of Honor 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 13 

Heritage Center in Coolidge Park to further honor Charles H. Coolidge,  a local Medal of 

Honor recipient.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-33 

 

 This Resolution accepts the bid of Pro SVL, Inc. for audio visual equipment for 

the Information Technology Services Department (ITS) on behalf of Sessions Court 

amounting to $96,233.12.  

 

 There were not questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 216-34 

 

 This Resolution approves the quotation of Technical Innovations for professional 

computer/software consulting services for design and field engineering and installation 

of audio visual equipment for the ITS Department on behalf of Sessions Court 

amounting to $51,794.10.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 14 

 In response to Commissioner Fields’ question, Finance Administrator Al Kiser 

explained that this is a new system for Sessions Court. It was noted that Resolution No. 

216-33 approves the purchase of the equipment, and Resolution No. 216-34 approves 

the installation.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Fields’ question, Purchasing Director Gail Roppo 

reported that the design and installation was done as a professional service and did not 

go out for bid. She added that once the system was designed, the actual equipment 

went out for bid with 678 notifications and 12 responses.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Director of ITS Bart McKinney 

explained this equipment would allow the attorneys and judges in Sessions Courtrooms 

to have the use of a 90-inch display screen. He added that this equipment will also 

improve the audio in those courtrooms. It was noted that the technology will allow for 

video conferencing in the future.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Ms. Roppo confirmed that 

Technical Innovations is on a unit price bid contract with the state. Commissioner Boyd 

added that he is a supporter of video hearings to eliminate the need and cost of 

transporting prisoners.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 15 

 Mr. McKinney reported that state law is currently preventing video hearings from 

taking place.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Mr. McKinney confirmed that 

the 90-inch screens will be a display mechanism for any type of technology that can be 

plugged into it.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately following 

the Agenda Session.   

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Mackey praised the various military honors that are being brought 

to Chattanooga.   

 

Commissioner Boyd announced that he will be giving a presentation on shared 

sales tax at the Nightside Pachyderm Club meeting taking place at the Western Sizzlin 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 16 

Restaurant, Thursday, February 11th in Ooltewah. He encouraged members of the 

Commission and the audience to attend.  

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that there is an immediate need for an emergency 

purchase to repair cornice in several areas along the Courthouse.  The cornice is over 

100 years old and the real cost to repair it will not be known until scaffold is in place and 

the repairs can be assessed. He noted the restricted areas outside of the Courthouse 

will remain in place until the repairs are completed.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
 

 17 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, February 17th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 17, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 17th day of February, 2016, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Randy Fairbanks, Chairman Pro 

Tempore. County Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the 

following, constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks. Total present 

– 7. Total absent – 2. 

 

Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks reported that Chairman Bankston was ill and 

would not be at today’s meeting. He also noted that Commissioner Mackey was 

attending a Government Day meeting in Nashville and would be absent.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

2 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

Commissioner Graham introduced Senior Pastor Gary Armes, Hickory Valley 

Christian Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Graham led in the pledge to 

the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of January 27, 2016, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of January 27, 2016, and the Regular Meeting of February 3, 2016, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion 

was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

3 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting February 8, 

2016. 

 

THREE STAR COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 

  Mayor Coppinger submitted for the record a letter reflecting Hamilton County’s 

compliance with the Three Star Program. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-16  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, AND 

THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY TRUSTEE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-16. The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

4 

 

Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks asked that Resolution Nos. 216-17A and 216-

17B be considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-17A  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 8830 GREEN GAP ROAD, 7623 SWEET FERN DRIVE AND 7677 

PEPPERTREE DRIVE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-17B  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 8830 GREEN GAP ROAD, 7623 SWEET FERN DRIVE AND 7677 

PEPPERTREE DRIVE. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 216-17A and 216-17B and stated that the Zoning Committee 

recommended approval of Resolution No. 216-17B, which includes certain conditions as 

recommended by the Regional Planning Commission. He noted opposition was present 

at the Planning Commission meeting and the Zoning Committee meeting. There was no 

opposition present at today’s Regular meeting.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

5 

 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-17B. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks reported that Resolution Nos. 216-18 through 

216-34 were heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-18  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT ON 

ONE (1) MEMBER AND THE REAPPOINTMENT OF TWO (2) MEMBERS BY THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY CONTRACTORS BOARD OF 

APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS FOR TERMS ENDING JANUARY 4, 2020. 

 

This Resolution confirms the appointment of Craig Peavy and the reappointment 

of Randy Metcalf and Ernest Noll, Jr. to the Hamilton County Contractors Board of 

Appeals and Adjustments for terms ending January 4, 2020.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

6 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-18. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-19  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO 

THE HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH AND SAFETY HEARING BOARD FOR A FOUR 

(4) YEAR TERM BEGINNING FEBRUARY 15, 2016 AND ENDING FEBRUARY 15, 

2020. 

 

This Resolution reappoints Ann Badgley to the Hamilton County Health and 

Safety Hearing Board for a four-year term beginning February 15, 2016 and ending 

February 15, 2020.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-19. The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

7 

 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. 

Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-20  A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENT BY 

THE COUNTY MAYOR OF DONALD LEE NORRIS AS ADMINISTRATOR OF 

GENERAL SERVICES. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-20. The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. 

Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-21  A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A MANDATORY 

RETIREMENT AGE REQUIREMENT PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE 

ANNOTATED, SECTION 8-36-205, TO AUTHORIZE THE PAYMENT OF THE 

SUPPLEMENTAL BRIDGE BENEFIT PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

8 

 

ANNOTATED, SECTION 8-36-211, AND TO AUTHORIZE GROUP 1 MEMBERS WHO 

HAVE CREDITABLE SERVICE IN A GROUP 1 POSITION COVERED BY SUCH 

MANDATORY AGE RETIREMENT TO RETIRE ON SERVICE RETIREMENT 

BENEFITS UPON ATTAINMENT OF AGE FIFTY-FIVE (55) WITH TWENTY-FIVE (25) 

YEARS OF CREDITABLE SERVICE PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE 

ANNOTATED, SECTION 8-36-201(A)(2). 

 

 Sheriff Hammond thanked Commissioners for the opportunity to bring this 

Resolution before them. He reported that the Sheriff’s Office has spent many hours 

working on the Bridge Retirement Plan over the last five years, and it has gained the 

overwhelming support of officers in his department. It was noted that a large number of 

uniformed officers were present in the audience at today’s meeting. Sheriff Hammond 

stated that he wished to respectfully pull the Resolution from the agenda and bring it 

back before the Commission when all nine Commissioners are present.  

 

 In response to Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbank’s question, Attorney Taylor 

confirmed that Sheriff Hammond could pull the Resolution and add it to a future agenda.  

 

It was noted that this resolution was pulled after it was heard as a Committee of 

the Whole at last week’s Agenda Session.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

9 

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Attorney Taylor noted that the 

item would need to be placed on the agenda and heard at a Regular Meeting as 

opposed to being heard at next week’s Recessed Meeting.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-22  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO, TO ASSIST THE 

TOWN OF SIGNAL MOUNTAIN WITH COMMUNITY BALL FIELD IMPROVEMENTS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-22. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-23  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC., IN THE AMOUNT 

OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

10 

 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-23. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-24  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC., IN THE AMOUNT 

OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-24. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

11 

 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-25  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

WANT TO FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-25. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-26  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

UP TO SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($7,200.00) FROM 

DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE) TO 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

12 

 

PURCHASE AN AUDIO AND SPEAKER SYSTEM FOR THE BRAINERD HIGH 

SCHOOL GYMNASIUM. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-26. The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. 

Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-27  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO A 

BETTER TOMORROW IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 

DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-27. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

13 

 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-28  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

MARY WALKER HISTORICAL AND EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE 

AMOUNT OF TWENTY SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($26,000.00) FROM GENERAL 

FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-28. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro 

Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and Commissioner Mackey were 

absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 6.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-29  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 

CHATTANOOGA TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT, INC. FOR ONE (1) TRACTOR WITH 

BOOM MOWER AMOUNTING TO $95,667.00 FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

14 

 

AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-29. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-30  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SUBMIT A FASTTRACK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT 

APPLICATION TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ON BEHALF OF YANFENG USA AUTOMOTIVE 

TRIM SYSTEMS, INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1.25 MILLION TO 

PROVIDE VARIOUS BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT IMPROVEMENTS AT THE 

COMPANY'S NEW HAMILTON COUNTY LOCATION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-30. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

15 

 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-31  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SUBMIT A FASTTRACK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT 

APPLICATION TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ON BEHALF OF WEST STAR AVIATION, INC. IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $200,000 TO PROVIDE VARIOUS IMPROVEMENTS AT 

THE COMPANY'S NEW HANGER FACILITY AT THE CHATTANOOGA 

METROPOLITAN AIRPORT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-31. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

16 

 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-32  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO NEGOTIATE, ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

HAMILTON COUNTY, THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AND THE CHARLES H. 

COOLIDGE MEDAL OF HONOR HERITAGE CENTER FOR A PORTION OF 

COUNTY AND CITY OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED IN COOLIDGE PARK, TO 

LOCATE A MEDAL OF HONOR HERITAGE CENTER IN COOLIDGE PARK TO 

FURTHER HONOR CHARLES H. COOLIDGE AS A MEDAL OF HONOR RECIPIENT 

AND TO ACT AS A MEMORIAL BY REFLECTING THE HERITAGE OF THE MEDAL 

OF HONOR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-32. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

17 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-33  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PRO SVL, 

INC. FOR AUDIO VISUAL EQUIPMENT AMOUNTING TO $96,233.12 FOR THE 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT ON BEHALF OF THE 

SESSIONS COURT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-33. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-34  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE QUOTATION OF 

TECHNICAL INNOVATIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL COMPUTER/SOFTWARE 

CONSULTING SERVICES FOR DESIGN AND FIELD ENGINEERING AND 

INSTALLATION OF AUDIO VISUAL EQUIPMENT AMOUNTING TO $51,794.10 FOR 

THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT ON BEHALF OF 

THE SESSIONS COURT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

18 

 

 

. ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 216-34. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks asked that Resolution Nos. 216-35 through 

216-41 be considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-35  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF STAFFORD-

SMITH, INC. FOR THREE (3) PRISONER TRAY TRANSPORT/SERVER CABINETS 

AMOUNTING TO $15,591.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 

THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-36  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BUMPUS 

HARLEY-DAVIDSON OF MURFREESBORO FOR ONE (1) POLICE MOTORCYCLE 

AMOUNTING TO $17,092.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

19 

 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 

THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-37  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF FLU 

VACCINE FROM NOVARTIS, SANOFI-PASTEUR, MCKESSON MED-SURG MN 

SUPPLY AT STATEWIDE CONTRACT PRICING AND, IF NECESSARY, OTHER 

FIRMS AT THE LOWEST AND BEST AVAILABLE PRICING QUOTE FOR THE 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR OR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-38  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF OUTDOOR 

RECREATION, INC. FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING FEBRUARY 17, 

2016, THROUGH FEBRUARY 16, 2017, FOR PERSONALIZED PARK BENCHES 

FOR THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA / 

HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-39  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF HUDSON 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR CONTRACT PRICING, FOR ONE (1) YEAR WITH 

THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERMS, 

FOR MICRO SEALING AND RESURFACING SERVICES FOR THE HIGHWAY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

20 

 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-40  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH WOOLPERT, INC. TO PROVIDE HAMILTON 

COUNTY WITH GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM COLOR AND COLOR 

INFRARED DIGITAL ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AT A 

COST OF $86,100 AND TO AMEND THE HAMILTON COUNTY PARTNERSHIP 

BUDGET BY ADDING $57,400 TO REVENUE AND $86,100 TO EXPENDITURES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 216-41  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2016, 

THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2016, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  

   

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 216-35 through 216-41, and stated that the Finance 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question about Resolution No. 216-36, 

Commissioner Boyd confirmed the police motorcycle that is coming out of service will 

be sold.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

21 

 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 216-35 through 216-41.  

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes’ question about Resolution No. 216-37, 

Becky Barnes, Administrator of Health Services, confirmed that volume and dosage is 

considered when purchasing the flu vaccine.  

 

The foregoing Resolutions were adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”, and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks, “Aye”. Chairman Bankston and 

Commissioner Mackey were absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” 

votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

 Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks asked for announcements from members of 

the Commission. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

22 

 

 Several Commissioners and Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks sent their prayers 

and well wishes to Chairman Bankston, who suffered a mild heart attack Sunday night 

while at church. He is currently recovering at home.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes announced that Chief Deputy Sheriff Allen Branum and 

his wife celebrated their wedding anniversary yesterday. He thanked Chief Branum for 

being present at today’s meeting. He also announced that a Hixson High School Alumni 

Association meeting will be taking place tonight at the former Hixson Middle School at 

6:00 pm. The purpose of the meeting is to combine Hixson graduates into one alumni 

association to help fund a scholarship that was set up when the high school turned 100 

years old.  

 

 Commissioner Graham also wished Chief Branum a happy anniversary.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd spoke about the meeting regarding the Hamilton County 

Water and Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA) that was held at the East Ridge 

Community Center, Tuesday, February 9th.  He noted that the meeting was well 

attended and many professional groups were represented. He announced that a 

meeting co-sponsored by Red Bank Representative Howard Cotter will take place on 

March 31st at 6:30 pm at the Red Bank Community Center.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

23 

 

 Commissioner Smedley announced that she would be co-hosting a community 

meeting with 4th District City Councilman Larry Grohn on February 18th at 6:00 pm at 

Morris Hill Baptist Church, 1804 Morris Hill Road. She added that Commissioner Boyd 

would be giving a presentation at the meeting.  

 

 Commissioner Beck publicly thanked Chairman Bankston for obtaining the 

frequently requested list detailing the Hamilton County Department of Education’s 

(HCDE) spending plans and school projects.  He added that a public discussion needs 

to take place regarding the list and he recommended a more equal distribution of funds 

among districts. A copy of the list has been filed with the Clerk’s office. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks asked for delegations on matters other than 

zoning. There were none. 

  

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 17, 2016 

 

24 

 

 
 

There being no further business, Chairman Pro Tempore Fairbanks declared the 

meeting in recess until Wednesday, February 24, 2016 at 9:30 AM. 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 
 







No. 316-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, 
AND THE OATHS OF OFFICE OF COMMISSIONERS OF NORTH 
WEST UTILITY DISTRICT. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office. 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT” have 
taken the oaths of office; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 
 

3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  

 
4. That the person named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF OFFICE OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT” are 
accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  

 
 5. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 







































No. 316-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF ONE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 
THREE DOLLARS ($1,303.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT NINE) TO ASSIST WITH THE PURCHASE OF LAB EQUIPMENT FOR BROWN 
MIDDLE SCHOOL. 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need for lab equipment at Brown Middle School; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Commissioner Chester Bankston desires to use One Thousand Three Hundred Three 

Dollars ($1,303.00) from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District Nine, to assist 
with the purchase of said lab equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, this expenditure has been approved by the Hamilton County Board of Education; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of One Thousand Three Hundred Three Dollars ($1,303.00) from discretionary 
bond funds, as allotted to District Nine, be approved to assist with the purchase of lab equipment for 
Brown Middle School. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 316-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF UP TO ONE THOUSAND NINE 
HUNDRED THIRTY EIGHT DOLLARS ($1,938.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS 
(AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE) TO PURCHASE A SECURITY SYSTEM FOR 
WOODMORE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL. 
 
WHEREAS, Woodmore Elementary School is in need of a security system; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck has expressed a desire to use up to One Thousand Nine 

Hundred Thirty Eight Dollars ($1,938.00) from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to 
District Five, to purchase said security system; and 

 
WHEREAS, this purchase has been approved by the Hamilton County Board of Education; and 
 
WHEREAS, this County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of up to One Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty Eight Dollars ($1,938.00) from 
discretionary bond funds be approved to purchase a security system for Woodmore Elementary School. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 316-4 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO GAMMA PI BOULE FOUNDATION IN 
THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Gamma Pi 
Boule Foundation to assist with the Boule Golf Classic; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
The Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Gamma Pi Boule Foundation to assist with the Boule Golf Classic. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 316-5 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF CHATTANOOGA 2.0, A COMMUNITY-WIDE 
EFFORT FOR ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE IN HAMILTON COUNTY. 
 

WHEREAS,  A great city and county with an engaged community provides a  
                           quality education and a sustainable economic future for all residents;  
 
WHEREAS,     to achieve these goals and meeting ongoing workforce demands of the  
                           region, our community has come together so 75% of our residents will  
                           earn a post-secondary credential or diploma that will improve the  
                           quality of life for all residents; 
 
WHEREAS,    over the next 100 days, community conversations will be held on  
                           ways to create clear, concise and impactful steps to improve academic  
                           success for all students; to prepare a skilled local workforce to fill  
                           living wage jobs and to put in place sustainable community  
                           engagement; 
 
WHEREAS,    our community is one of the top 10 metropolitan areas in the country      
                           for growing advanced industries, adding over 12,000 high-paying jobs  
                           since 2010 with the number expected to quadruple in the next five  
                           years; 
 
WHEREAS,     in the coming years, over 80% of jobs paying at least $35,000 in our  
                           area will require a postsecondary certificate or degree and at this time,  
                           only 35% of students in Hamilton County are likely to obtain this  
                           level of education; 
 
WHEREAS,    there are many talented and dedicated teachers, principals, educators  
                           and higher education leaders in our community who are working  
                           every day to make a difference in the lives of students; 
 



 

 

WHEREAS,    there are actions that we know have the potential of making a  
                           difference, including teaching and leadership, early education and  
                           learning, stronger career connections at all levels, greater access to  
                           technology and greater involvement by families in the learning  
                           process; 
 
WHEREAS,    citizens of Chattanooga and Hamilton County over the years have  
                           come together to address major issues, drawing on the collective  
                           wisdom, knowledge and resources in our community to work toward  
                           positive solutions; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That, on this day, March 2, 2016, the Hamilton County Commission endorses the 
Chattanooga 2.0 initiative, a community-wide effort for academic excellence in 
Hamilton County, and encourages all of our citizens, businesses and organizations to 
engage in the discussions that will renew our public education system in Hamilton 
County and fulfill the work force opportunities with local residents that exist now and 
well into the future. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 316-6 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FROM THE REGISTER’S 
OFFICE DP FEE ACCOUNT IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,208.05 FOR NECESSARY OFFICE 
UPGRADES AND INCREASING THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY 
FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY REGISTER’S OFFICE BY $12,550.00 AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, TCA 8-21-1001allows the Register’s Office to charge a $2.00 data processing fee 

which is earmarked for the purchase, maintenance and/or upgrade of computerization 
in the Register’s Office and which must be accounted for separately from other fees 
of the office; and 

 
WHEREAS,  TCA 8-21-1001 (i) allows that the Register may utilize the funds collected from the 

$2.00 data processing fee for non-computer purposes directly related to the official 
function of the office if an amendment is adopted by a 2/3 vote of the county 
legislative body and if such subsequent purchases are authorized by the county 
legislative body; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County adopted this amendment via Resolution 1213-5; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purchases of furnishing from NOI Chattanooga in the amount of $17,914.95 from 

the statewide contract and the floor tile/installation from Tom’s Carpet Outlet 
Incorporated for $6,294.00 based on three competitive quotes are necessary 
improvements to the Register’s Office which may be covered under the above 
amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the listed improvements to the Register’s Office will require an amendment to the 

General Fund capital outlay budget for the Register’s Office of $12,550.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds reserved in the Register’s Office DP Fee account to pay for 

these purchases.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 



 

 

 
That the appropriation of funds from the Register’s Office DP Fee Account for these necessary office 
upgrades in the amount of $24,208.05 is approved and the General Fund budget for capital outlay for 
the Register’s Office is increased by the amount of $12,550.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 316-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF DRAEGER SAFETY, INC. FOR A 
PORTABLE EXTERIOR LIVE FIRE TRAINER AND TANK PROP AMOUNTING TO 
$28,785.00 FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for a portable exterior 

live fire trainer and tank prop for Emergency Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Draeger Safety, Inc. amounting to $28,785.00 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Draeger Safety, Inc. for a portable exterior live fire trainer and tank prop 
amounting to $28,785.00 for Emergency Services is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest 
and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



































No. 316-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
INCREASE THE CONTRACT WITH TWH ARCHITECTS, INC. FOR THE 
DESIGN OF THE NEW EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, FOR 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $141,035.88 OF PREVIOUSLY 
BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 1012-7 was approved the firm of TWH Architects, 

Inc. to provide design services for East Brainerd Elementary; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, according to the design contract, the architectural fee for 

design services would be recalculated when the final 
construction cost is known; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the lump sum bid construction cost is greater than the 

estimated construction cost used to calculate the design 
contract amount; and, 

 
WHEREAS, based on the bid construction cost and completion of the 

project, the architectural fee should be increased for an 
amount not to exceed $141,035.88 for design services. 

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY 
LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is authorized to increase the contract with TWH                 
Architects, Inc. for the design of the new East Brainerd Elementary for an 
amount not to exceed $141,035.88. 
 
 
  



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE 
REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 





New East Brainerd Elementary School 
  
  

- 2- 

 
 

COMPENSATION TO DESIGNER 
 

I. The DESIGNER shall provide professional services for the Project in accordance with the 
Terms and Conditions of this Agreement.  The professional design services to be 
provided under this Agreement will be administered and coordinated by TWH Architects, 
Inc.  

 
II. The OWNER shall compensate the DESIGNER in accordance with the Terms and 

Conditions of this Agreement.  
 

A. FOR BASIC SERVICES, as described in Article 1-1 of the Terms and Conditions, 
Basic Compensation shall be a lump sum fee of $1,138,020.00, calculated using the 
formula 35/(log P – 1.15), based on an Estimated Construction Cost (P) of 
$20,000,000.00.  The lump sum fee will be recalculated at the end of the project 
based on the Final Construction Cost (P) using the above formula.  

  
B. FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES, as described in Article 1-2 of the Terms and 

Conditions, compensation will be mutually agreed on by the Owner and the Designer, 
for an amount not to exceed $10,000, unless previously authorized in writing by the 
Owner. 

 
C. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES, amounts expended as defined in Article 1-3 of the 

Terms and Conditions, not to exceed $75,000.00, unless previously authorized in 
writing by the Owner. 

 
D. SURVEYING, EASEMENTS & PERMITS, amounts expended as described in 

Article 1-4, times a multiple of 1.10, for an amount not to exceed $18,500.00, unless 
previously approved in writing by the Owner. 

  
III. THE OWNER AND THE DESIGNER agree in accordance with the Terms and 

Conditions of this Agreement that:  
  

A. Articles 1-1-1 to 1-1-28 of the BASIC SERVICES covered by this Agreement shall 
be completed within 22 months of the effective date of the Agreement. 

 
B. If the scope of services is changed in writing by the Owner, the compensation will be 

calculated in accordance with paragraph II(B) above. 
 
 

 
  





No. 316-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF AMERICAN GROUP PHOTOGRAPHY dba 
CUSTOM PHOTO IMAGES FOR ONE (1) ROUNDSHOT METRICS CAMERA AND 
EQUIPMENT AMOUNTING TO $17,995.00 FOR SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) Roundshot 

Metrics camera and equipment for the Sheriff’s Office; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from American Group Photography dba Custom Photo Images 

amounting to $17,995.00 was the only bid received, but said bid is deemed 
reasonable; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of American Group Photography dba Custom Photo Images for one (1) 
Roundshot Metrics camera and equipment amounting to $17,995.00 for the Sheriff’s Office is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 

























No. 316-10 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO PURCHASE, FROM THE 
TENNESSEE STATEWIDE CONTRACT, NEW AND UNUSED VEHICLES TO BE UTILIZED AS 
UNMARKED OR UNDERCOVER VEHICLES; THE NUMBER OF SUCH VEHICLES TO BE 
PURCHASED TO BE DETERMINED BY THE FUNDS APPROPRIATED ANNUALLY, NOT TO 
EXCEED $120,000.00 FOR FY 2016 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary in law enforcement operations to utilize undercover or unmarked 

vehicles, it is not practical to obtain said vehicles through the sealed bid process; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to protect the safety and security of the officers who may drive said 

vehicles by protecting the identity of the vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS,  there is a wide selection of makes and models of vehicles available on the Tennessee 

Statewide Contract; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Statewide Contract is open to Hamilton County in accordance with 

applicable provisions of the Hamilton County Purchasing Rules; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted monies in the Narcotics Enforcement Fund 

that are available to the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IS SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Sheriff’s Offices is hereby authorized to purchase, from the Tennessee Statewide Contract and 
in compliance with applicable provision of Hamilton County’s Purchasing Rules and State of 
Tennessee Law, new and used vehicles to be utilized as unmarked or in its undercover operations in an 
amount that is not to exceed $120,000.00 of currently budgeted Narcotics Enforcement Fund monies 
for FY 2016, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 



 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 316-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF ACME SUPPLY COMPANY, LTD, BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC., 
ICS JAIL SUPPLIES, INC., CAROLINA TEXTILES, CHARM-TEX, CORNERSTONE DETENTION PRODUCTS, 
INC, O.D. TARGIN & BROTHERS, LLC, AND VICTORY SUPPLY, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT 
PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 20, 2016, THROUGH MARCH 19, 2017, FOR CLOTHING AND 
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

pricing for clothing and miscellaneous items for the jail; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Acme Supply Company, LTD, Bob Barker Company, Inc., ICS Jail 

Supplies, Inc., Carolina Textiles, Charm-Tex, Cornerstone Detention Products, Inc., 
O.D. Targin & Brothers, LLC, and Victory Supply, Inc. were considered to be the lowest 
and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient funds available to the requisitioning department 
from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Acme Supply Company, LTD, Bob Barker Company, Inc., ICS Jail Supplies, Inc., Carolina 
Textiles, Charm-Tex, Cornerstone Detention Products, O.D. Targin & Brothers, LLC and Victory Supply, 
Inc. for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning March 20, 2016, through March 19, 2017, for clothing 
and miscellaneous items for the Sheriff’s Office are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and 
best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement 
this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 















































No. 316-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $278,600.00 TO PROVIDE CHILDHOOD 
IMMUNIZATION SERVICES IN HAMILTON COUNTY, FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2016 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016.   
 
WHEREAS, childhood immunizations have been proven to reduce the incidence and impact of 

vaccine preventable diseases; and,  
 
WHEREAS, identifying children at risk for being under immunized and following their vaccine 

status, encouraging vaccination at every opportunity has been shown to significantly 
increase the vaccination status of those children; and, 

 
WHEREAS, auditing day care, primary and secondary school immunization records ensures that 

children in group settings are appropriately immunized; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health oversees the Vaccine for Children Program that 

provides vaccine to eligible children free of charge at numerous providers throughout 
Hamilton County; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the Vaccine for Children’s Program requires local oversight; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health has identified continuation funding for the 

provision of these services in Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract for the provision of 
childhood immunization services for the children of Hamilton County for the period of 
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 



























































































No. 316-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CONTECH ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, LLC, 
AND SHERMAN DIXIE CONCRETE INDUSTRIES, INC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT 
PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2016, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2016, FOR CONCRETE 
AND METAL CULVERT FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for concrete and metal culvert for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, and Sherman Dixie Concrete 

Industries, Inc. were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, and Sherman Dixie Concrete Industries, Inc. for 
six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, through September 6, 2016, for concrete and 
metal culvert for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 































No. 316-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TNT CONCRETE, LLC FOR SIX (6) MONTHS 
CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2016 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2016, FOR 
READY MIX CONCRETE FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for ready mix concrete for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from TNT Concrete, LLC was the only bid received, but said bid is deemed 

reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of TNT Concrete, LLC for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, 
through September 6, 2016, for ready mix concrete for the Highway Department is hereby accepted, 
said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 

























No. 316-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS, VULCAN 
MATERIALS COMPANY, AND DUNLAP STONE, INC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT 
PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2016, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2016, FOR CRUSHED 
STONE AND SAND FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Materials Company, and Dunlap 

Stone, Inc. were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Materials Company, Dunlap Stone, Inc. for six (6) 
months contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, through September 6, 2016, for crushed stone and 
sand for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 























No. 316-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 2, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF TALLEY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. dba 
SOUTHEASTERN MATERIALS, INC., HUDSON MATERIALS COMPANY, BLACKLIDGE 
EMULSIONS, INC., DUNLAP STONE, INC. AND HIWASSEE PAVING, LLC. FOR SIX (6) 
MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2016, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 
2016, FOR ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six (6) months contract 

pricing for asphalt road materials for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids of Talley Construction Company, Inc. dba Southeastern Materials, Inc., 

Hudson Materials Company, Blacklidge Emulsions Inc., Dunlap Stone, Inc. and 
Hiwassee Paving, LLC were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Talley Construction Company, Inc. dba Southeastern Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials 
Company, Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc., Dunlap Stone, Inc. and Hiwassee Paving, LLC for six months 
contract pricing, beginning March 7, 2016, through September 6, 2016, for asphalt road materials for 
the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 2, 2016 

  
Date 

 


























	3-2-16 Public Agenda
	316-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - February 10, 2016_2140_02-10-16 Recessed
	316-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - February 10, 2016 _2141_02-10-16 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	316-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - February 17, 2016 _2143_02-17-16 Regular
	316-_S_Report_Criminal Court Clerks Report December 2015 and January 2016_2145_Criminal Court Clerks Report December 2015 and January 2016
	316-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_2144_03-02-16
	316-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_2144_03-02-16A
	316-2_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Brown Middle School_2125_Comm Bankston Brown MS
	316-3_R_Commissioner Beck_Security System for Woodmore Elementary School_2136_Comm Beck Woodmore
	316-4_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Gamma Pi Boule Foundation_2129_Comm Mackey GammaPiBoule
	316-4_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Gamma Pi Boule Foundation_2129_1362_001
	316-5_R_Rheubin Taylor_Chattanooga 20_2149_Chattanooga 2.0 Resolution
	316-6_R_County Register Pam Hurst_Register amendment of the Data Processing Fee 1010509_2127_Res Registers Office DP FEE ACCOUNT EXPENDITURE 3-16
	316-7_R_County Mayor_Portable Exterior Live Fire Trainer and Tank Prop_2138_RES. PORTABLE EXTERIOR LIVE FIRE TRAINER & TANK PROP
	316-7_S_County Mayor_Portable Exterior Live Fire Trainer and Tank Prop_2138_Portable Exterior Live Fire Trainer and Tank Prop
	316-8_R_Todd Leamon_Increase the Contract with TWH Architects Inc for East Brainerd Elementary_2139_TWHIncrease_Official
	316-8_S_Todd Leamon_Increase the Contract with TWH Architects Inc for East Brainerd Elementary_2139_ConstructionCost
	316-8_S_Todd Leamon_Increase the Contract with TWH Architects Inc for East Brainerd Elementary_2139_Pages from TWH Contract
	316-8_S_Todd Leamon_Increase the Contract with TWH Architects Inc for East Brainerd Elementary_2139_Resolution1012-7
	316-9_R_Sheriff Hammond_Roundshot Metrics Camera and Equipment_2134_RES. ROUNDSHOT METRICS CAMERA & EQUIPMENT
	316-9_S_Sheriff Hammond_Roundshot Metrics Camera and Equipment_2134_Roundshot Metrics Camera & Equipment
	316-10_R_Sheriff Hammond_Undercover Vehicle Purchase_2135_Res Narcotics Vehicles 3-16
	316-11_R_Sheriff Hammond_Clothing and Miscellaneous Items for the Jail_2142_RES. CLOTHING & MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR JAIL
	316-11_S_Sheriff Hammond_Clothing and Miscellaneous Items for the Jail_2142_Clothing & Miscellaneous Items
	316-12_R_Becky Barnes_Childhood Immunization Services_2137_Immunzation Contract 2016 Resolution
	316-12_S_Becky Barnes_Childhood Immunization Services_2137_Immunization Services Contract 2016
	316-13_R_Todd Leamon_Concrete and Metal Culvert Contract_2130_RES. CONCRETE AND METAL CULVERT
	316-13_S_Todd Leamon_Concrete and Metal Culvert Contract_2130_Concrete and Metal Culvert
	316-14_R_Todd Leamon_Ready Mix Concrete Contract_2131_RES. READY MIX CONCRETE
	316-14_S_Todd Leamon_Ready Mix Concrete Contract_2131_Ready Mix Concrete
	316-15_R_Todd Leamon_Crushed Stone and Sand Contract_2132_RES. CRUSHED STONE & SAND
	316-15_S_Todd Leamon_Crushed Stone and Sand Contract_2132_Crushed Stone & Sand
	316-16_R_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Road Materials Contract_2133_RES. ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS
	316-16_S_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Road Materials Contract_2133_Asphalt Road Materials

